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George Karageorgiou receiving the QCA ”International IPO 
of the Year”  on January 30, 2008.

Full Year 2007 Financial and Operational Highlights 

Globus Maritime Limited (“Globus” or the “Company”) began operations 
on September 15, 2006. At December 31, 2006 Globus owned four vessels 
with a total 172,765 deadweight tons, while at December 31, 2007 Globus’ 
fleet included eight vessels, six Handymaxes and two Panamaxes, totalling 
415,558 deadweight tons (dwt) with an average age of 10.7 years. Seven of 
our eight vessels are geared.

All figures which follow are in United States Dollars ($), except for the 
dividends which are in Pounds Sterling (GBP).

Financial Highlights 
During the year, the Company made good progress due to an increase in 
prevailing time charter rates and an increase in the number of vessels in the 
Company’s fleet:

Time Charter (T/C) Revenues: $41 million

Net Revenues:   $38.7 million

Operating Expenses:  $7.6 million

EBITDA:    $28 million

Net Income:   $12 million

Net Cash from Operations: $31.9 million

Earnings per share basic of  $0.4713 calculated on 23,785,402 shares

Final Dividend (Proposed) of  GB 7.31 pence per share

Total Dividend of   GB 8.75 pence per share

Operational Highlights 

Ownership days:     2,017

Available days:      1,965

Operating days:      1,837

An average of 5.5 vessels were owned and operated during 
the twelve months of 2007, earning an average Time Charter 
Equivalent (TCE) rate of $19,702 per day.

On January 30, 2008, the Company received the award for the 
“International IPO of the Year” at the annual ceremony of the 
Quoted Company Awards.



January 2007: Delivery of M/V Gulf Globe - chartered with Cosco @ $22,000/day

June 2007:  Admission to AIM – 8,423,333 shares - $50 million gross proceeds

July 2007:  Delivery of M/V Island Globe - chartered to D/S Norden @ $30,000/day

September 2007: Payment of interim dividend of GB 1.44 pence per share for month of June

November 2007:  Signing of a $120m revolving credit facility with Credit Suisse 

December 2007:  Delivery of M/V River Globe  - currently trading spot 

December 2007:  Delivery of M/V Tiara Globe -  chartered with Korea Lines @ $66,000/day

January 2008: Foreign IPO of the Year Award at “Quoted Company Awards” 

Major Events

George Karageorgiou receiving 
the listing plaque from Antonio 
Governale of the London Stock 
Exchange under the watchful eye 
of Mr. Feidakis.
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Chairman’s Letter

Fellow shareholders,

2007 marked a strategic milestone in the development of our Company with 
our IPO and the listing of our shares on AIM in June of 2007. I am pleased to 
present the Company’s first Annual Report and I would like to welcome all of
our shareholders to the Company.

Consistent with the strategy outlined at the time of our IPO, we have expanded 
our fleet to a total of eight vessels, by acquiring one newbuilding Handymax
and two second hand Panamax vessels, and reduced our fleet’s weighted
average age to 10.7 years, which is well below the industry average. 

This fleet expansion is taking place at a time of high demand and strong freight
rates thereby enabling us to take advantage of the positive fundamentals of 
the dry-bulk shipping markets. Our intention is to continue with prudent fleet
expansion as the proper opportunities arise.

We seek the generation of strong, stable and predictable cash flows by securing
our vessels under time charters at the proper time, while also taking advantage 
of the continued market strength. As of today, 65% of our fleet days for 2008 are
already secured under fixed period employment and with the remainder of our
fleet, as it becomes available for rechartering within 2008, we expect to achieve
higher rates for these vessels than their current rates, thereby maximising our 
revenue and profitability.

With our young and modern fleet, experienced management, strong customer
relationships and low leverage, we believe that our Company is strategically 
positioned to benefit from the attractive dry-bulk sector fundamentals and the
continued strong global demand for basic commodities around the world.

The strong free cash flow generated from the business in 2007 and the balance
of the proceeds of our IPO provide resources for the continued expansion of the 
fleet and the increase in revenue capacity. As far as our fleet expansion program
is concerned, we continue to evaluate and consider a number of sensible 
opportunities to enhance our fleet while remaining cautious against the current
prevailing dry-bulk vessel sales prices.

Concluding this letter, I would like to thank George Karageorgiou and his team 
for their successes during the year, for their efficient operation of the fleet,
and for their search for new opportunities. I am extremely pleased with the 
Company’s performance thus far and I look forward to reporting further positive 
progress in the future.

George Feidakis 
Chairman
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Issuer

Offer Size

Offer Structure

Global Co-ordinator &
Nomad

Use of Proceeds

Listing Venue

Total Shares
Outstanding

Globus Maritime Limited (Jersey)

8,423,333 shares - c. US$ 50 million gross proceeds

All Primary Shares

Jefferies International Limited

Fund acquisition of Panamax M/V Island Globe delivered to
Globus on July 9, 2007 and general corporate purposes

AIM, London (GLBS.L)

28,636,153 (as of 31/12/2007)

June 2007 IPO

The Globus board with all the IPO advisers at the London Stock Exchange opening ceremony. 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review of Operations

We are delighted to have concluded a very successful year in 2007, our first year
as a publicly traded company. 

The Globus fleet consists of Handymax and Panamax dry-bulk vessels and our
strategy is to fix our vessels on medium to long term charters, depending on
the market cycle, with blue-chip customers. Our business model is designed to 
avoid the cyclical extremes of the shipping industry and results in a high level 
of earnings predictability and visibility, with strong cash flows. This allows us to
have the twin objectives of paying an attractive dividend and using retained 
earnings to drive growth. 

2007 has been a notable year for Globus as its Initial Public Offering (IPO) has
provided a firm base for business expansion. Globus listed on the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange in June 2007. A gross 
total of GBP25 million (or $50 million) was raised to expand the business.

At the balance sheet date, seven months after the admission to AIM, the fleet
has increased from five to eight vessels while charter rates have also icreased
significantly compared to the previous year.

Our strong balance sheet will allow us to grasp opportunities to grow, but 
shareholders should be aware that this growth will only occur if sensible 
opportunities arise. Our focus for acquisitions will continue to be on dry-bulk vessels. 
We expect that our fleet will continue to grow while its average age will decline.

We remain confident on the outlook of the dry-bulk markets for 2008. The
employment status of the majority of our dry-bulk fleet is favourably positioned
to take advantage of the current booming dry markets and to strongly support 
our 2008 financial performance.

With the aim of providing value to our shareholders, we have delivered a year 
of strong operational and financial results, as Net Income for the year exceeded
$12 million on Revenues of $41 million.

Our Board recommends a final dividend of GB 7.31 pence per share, which
will result in a total of GB 8.75 pence per share declared for the part of 2007 (7 
months) that Globus traded as a public company.

Annual General Meeting

We will be holding the first Annual General Meeting at the offices of Globus
Shipmanagement Corp., our wholly-owned shipmanagement subsidiary, on 
the 3rd floor at 128 Vouliagmenis Avenue, in Glyfada, 166 74 Greece, at 12.00
noon on May 7, 2008.  We are looking forward to welcoming you to our AGM.

Auditors

During the period under review, Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as auditors. 
They have indicated their willingness to continue in office, and a resolution for
their reappointment will be proposed at the AGM.

George Karageorgiou
Chief Executive Officer 

INTERNATIONAL IPO OF THE YEAR

GEORGIOS KARAGEORGIOU

GLOBUS MARITIME

Organised by

Headline Sponsor

Award Sponsor

COMPANYQUOTED
A W A R D S  2 0 0 8

Winner
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Notes:

(1) Average number of vessels is the number of vessels that constituted our fleet for the relevant
period, as measured by the sum of the number of days each vessel was a part of our fleet during
the period divided by the number of calendar days in the period. 

(2) We calculate the average age of the fleet by aggregating the individual age of each vessel in
the fleet at the period end weighted by each vessel’s deadweight tonnage in proportion to the
deadweight tonnage of the whole fleet at the period end.

(3) Ownership days are the aggregate number of days in a period during which each vessel in our 
fleet has been owned by us. Ownership days are an indicator of the size of our fleet over a period
and affect both the amount of revenues and the amount of expenses that we record during a
period.

(4) Available days are the number of our ownership days less the aggregate number of days that 
our vessels are off-hire due to scheduled repairs or repairs under guarantee, vessel upgrades or
special surveys and the aggregate amount of time that we spend positioning our vessels. The 
shipping industry uses available days to measure the number of days in a period during which 
vessels should be capable of generating revenues.

(5) Operating days are the number of available days in a period less the aggregate number of days 
that our vessels are off-hire due to any reason, including unforeseen circumstances. The shipping
industry uses operating days to measure the aggregate number of days in a period during which 
vessels actually generate revenues.

(6) Fleet utilisation is measured by dividing the number of our operating days during a period 
by the number of our available days during the same period. The shipping industry uses fleet
utilisation to measure a company’s efficiency in finding suitable employment for its vessels and
minimising the amount of days that its vessels are off-hire for reasons other than scheduled repairs
or repairs under guarantee, vessel upgrades, special surveys or vessel positioning. 

(7) Average daily vessel operating expenses, which include crew wages and related costs, the cost 
of insurance, expenses relating to repairs and maintenance, the costs of spares and consumable 
stores, tonnage taxes and other miscellaneous expenses, are calculated by dividing vessel 
operating expenses by ownership days for the relevant period.

(8) TCE rates are defined as our time and voyage charter revenues less voyage expenses during
a period divided by the number of our available days during the period, which is consistent with 
industry standards. Voyage expenses include port charges, bunker (fuel oil and diesel oil) expenses, 
canal charges and commissions. TCE rate is a standard shipping industry performance measure 
used primarily to compare daily earnings generated by vessels on time charters with daily earnings 
generated by vessels on voyage charters, because charter hire rates for vessels on voyage charters 
are generally not expressed in per day amounts while charter hire rates for vessels on time charters 
are generally expressed in such amounts.
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Financial Highlights
For the Year/period ended 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
(in thousands of US dollars) (audited) (audited)

Income Statement Data:
Gross Revenue 40,960 5,244
Voyage expenses (incl. commissions) (2,245) (265)
Net Revenue 38,715 4,979
Vessels operating expenses (7,639) (1,123)
Administrative expenses (3,049) (578)
Other expenses (36) -

EBITDA 27,991 3,278
Depreciation (incl. dry-docking costs) (11,245) (1,402)

Operating profit before finance costs 16,746 1,876
Interest expense (5,596) (884)
Interest income 577 56
Foreign exchange gains / (losses) 298 (2)
Profit for the Year/period 12,025 1,046

Profit attributable to:
– Globus Maritime Limited shareholders 11,210 940
– Minority interests 815 106

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash (including restricted cash)                                          10,073 2,437
Total assets                                     285,500 104,101
Long-term debt, net of unamortised arrangement fees         182,516 66,083
Total shareholders’ equity 96,677 35,035

Cash Flow Data:
Net cash flow from operating activities 31,936 4,067
Net cash flow used in investing activities (184,732) (101,049)
Net cash flows from financing activities 159,770 99,053

OPERATING DATA
The following information is unaudited:
Fleet Data:
Average number of vessels(1) 5.5 2.6
Number of vessels at end of period 8 4
Weighted average age of fleet (in years)(2) 10.7 11.8
Ownership days(3) 2,017 279
Available days(4) 1,965 275
Operating days(5) 1,837 274
Fleet utilisation(6) 93.5% 99.7%

Average Daily Results:
Vessel operating expenses (U.S. dollars)(7) 3,787 4,025
Time charter equivalent (TCE) rate (U.S. dollars)(8) 19,702 18,105

(Notes appear on page 8)
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our Company

our Board The Board currently comprises two executive directors and three non-executive 
directors.

George Karageorgiou (Age 44), Chief Executive Officer and director
Mr. Karageorgiou is our co-founder and has served as our Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) since September 2006. Mr. Karageorgiou has 18 years of shipping experience 
(four years of which involved public company experience). He worked as a projects’ 
engineer for Kassos Maritime Enterprises from 1990-1992 and as a director and 
corporate secretary for the NYSE-listed Stelmar Shipping Limited from 1992-2004. 
During his time at Stelmar Shipping Limited, Mr. Karageorgiou assisted with vessel 
acquisitions, financings and strategy and was involved with the company’s public
offerings. Mr. Karageorgiou was also a director of easyGroup Limited, easyJet
Holdings Limited, easyInternetCafe Limited, easyCruise (UK) Limited and a number 
of other easyGroup subsidiaries from 1995 to 2005. Mr. Karageorgiou holds a BE in 
Mechanical Engineering and an ME in Ocean Engineering from Stevens Institute of 
Technology and an MSc in Shipping Trade and Finance from CASS Business School.

Elias Deftereos (Age 48), Chief Financial Officer and director
Mr. Deftereos has served as our Chief Financial Officer (CFO) since April 2007. Mr.
Deftereos has been involved in banking and the capital markets for more than 17 
years, for eight of which he was active in the shipping industry. He has previously 
worked as an analyst for Olympic Maritime of the Onassis Group (1988-1991), as an 
account officer for ship financing for ABN AMRO Bank (1994-1996), and more recently 
as the chief financial officer of Konkar Shipping Agencies (2004-2005) and Astron
Maritime (2005-2006) overseeing all finance and treasury functions. Mr. Deftereos
has also worked as an investment manager for Lehman Brothers (1997-1998) and 
as the group treasurer of Mytilineos Holdings (1999-2001), a company listed on 
the Athens Stock Exchange. Mr. Deftereos holds a BA in Economics from the State 
University of New York and an MBA in Finance from the University of Chicago.

We are a company incorporated in Jersey in 2006. We acquired six Handymax 
vessels and two Panamax vessels between September 2006 and December 2007, 
from unaffiliated third parties. By December 31, 2007 we had taken delivery of all
eight vessels, which have an aggregate carrying capacity of 415,558 dwt, while the 
weighted average age as at December 31, 2007 was 10.7 years.

We own and operate a fleet of dry-bulk vessels that transport iron ore, coal, grain,
steel products, cement, alumina and other dry-bulk cargoes worldwide. 

During 2007 our vessels were chartered to reputable and creditworthy charterers 
including Atlas Shipping, COSCO, DS Norden, STX Pan Ocean and Korea Line.
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George Feidakis (Age 57), Chairman and Non-Executive director
Mr. Feidakis is our co-founder and major shareholder. He is also the major 
shareholder and chairman of FG Europe, a company listed on the Athens 
Stock Exchange. FG Europe is a company active in four lines of business and 
represents international brands in Greece, the Balkans, Italy, and Turkey. FG 
Europe is a leader in the air-conditioning market in Greece, is a distributor 
of electrical appliances, has invested in power generation from renewable 
sources of energy, and is a distributor of mobile telephony. Mr. Feidakis is also 
an active investor in commercial and residential real estate developments in 
Greece as well as a number of other major cities in South-Eastern Europe. Mr. 
Feidakis turned his investment in shipping stocks into shipping assets and co-
founded the Company. 

Amir Eilon (Age 58), Non-Executive director
Mr. Eilon has 30 years of investment banking experience. Mr. Eilon is currently 
a director of Eilon & Associates Ltd, which provides general corporate advice. 
Mr. Eilon was previously a non-executive director of easyJet plc and is 
currently, among other, a non-executive chairman of Spring plc, and a director 
of Flamingo Holdings, a venture capital backed private company. He was 
managing director of Morgan Stanley, London where he was responsible for 
international equity capital markets, managing director of BZW, where he was 
head of global capital markets, and managing director of Credit Suisse First 
Boston Private Equity.

Arjun Batra (Age 48), Non-Executive director
Mr. Batra has over 30 years shipping experience. He is currently Group 
managing director of Drewry Shipping Consultants Ltd. Mr. Batra is also the 
managing director of North South International and North South Maritime 
Services, brokers and consultants specialising in the shipping industry. 
He is also non-executive director of Digitalship Ltd and Maritime Content 
Ltd. Mr Batra also acts as a non-executive alternate director of Henschien 
Insurance Services A/S, an insurance broker in Norway specialising in marine 
risk management services. He has previously acted as a finance director
for Stelmar Tankers, was part of the core senior management team during 
the start-up of easyJet, and was 
insurance manager for Troodos 
Shipping and Trading Ltd. He is a 
fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Ship Brokers and a member of the 
Nautical Institute. He holds an MSc 
in Shipping, Trade and Finance from 
CASS Business School, London and 
is a Master Mariner (1st Class).
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our Strengths
We believe that we possess a number of strengths that give us a competitive 
advantage, namely:

• We have a modern fleet consisting of eight vessels with a weighted average age
of approximately 10.7 years as at December 31, 2007 as compared to the average 
age of approximately 15 years for the world fleet. All our vessels were built in
reputable yards, including, among others, Hyundai and Samsung, which have a 
reputation for constructing high-quality vessels. 

• We have a fleet of six Handymax vessels and two Panamax vessels capable of
transporting various dry-bulk cargoes globally. As seven of our vessels are geared, 
they can operate in ports with minimal shore-side infrastructure. Due to the 
ability to switch between various dry-bulk cargo types and the ability to service a 
wider variety of ports, day-rates for geared vessels tend to have a premium.

• Five of our Handymax vessels are sister ships. Sister ships can use similar spare 
parts. We believe that maintaining a fleet that includes sister ships increases
our revenue generating potential by improving our operational and scheduling 
flexibility and reduces costs by creating economies of scale in the maintenance,
supply of spare parts and crewing of our vessels.

• Our substantial charter coverage enhances earnings predictability. During 2007, 
with the exception of the M/V River Globe which traded in the spot market 
during December, all of our vessels were fixed on short-to-long-term charters.
Period chartering such as this assists predictable and visible cashflows and high
utilisation rates. Depending on market conditions, some vessels might trade on 
the spot market.

• A strong balance sheet for growth. Following the completion of the IPO in June 
2007, we had at December 31, 2007 a ratio of net indebtedness to total market 
value of our fleet of 37%. We believe that our comfortable level of debt will
facilitate our ability to finance further vessel acquisitions and implement our
growth strategy. We believe that maintaining a moderate level of indebtedness 
will also allow us to remain competitive in adverse market conditions. Further, 
funds raised through our public listing provide us with the resources to 
consolidate the fragmented dry-bulk industry should the opportunity arise.

• An experienced management team. Our executive management team is led by 
our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder, George Karageorgiou, and our Chief
Financial Officer, Elias Deftereos, and has a total of over 119 years of experience in
the shipping industry.

• Our in-house ship management avoids the risk of conflicts of interest. Unlike
other listed shipping companies whose assets and operations tend to be 
managed externally, our vessels and operations are managed by our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Globus Shipmanagement Corp. (GSC). This structure means 
that we avoid the risk of conflicts of interest which is inherent with external ship
management. Our in-house commercial and technical management teams focus 
exclusively on our vessels, further avoiding conflicts with vessels not owned by
us. As a result, our Shareholders can have confidence that our affairs are always
managed in their best interests.

• We are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance 
and comply with those aspects of the Combined Code which we consider 
appropriate taking into account Globus’ size and the nature of our business.
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We manage our fleet in a manner that is designed to allow us to maintain
profitability across the shipping cycle and thus to maximise returns for our
Shareholders. To accomplish this objective, we have identified the following
strategies, which build upon our existing strengths:

• We focus on the Handymax and Panamax sectors. We own a modern, high 
quality fleet of dry-bulk carriers and will continue to focus on the Handymax
and Panamax segments. Our intention is to focus on sister ships where possible 
for greater operational flexibility. We believe that our Handymax and Panamax
vessels will enable us to transport a wider variety of cargoes and to pursue a 
greater number of chartering opportunities than larger vessels.

• Pursue an optimal balance of short-to-long-term time charters. We employ our 
vessels primarily on time charters with terms of between one and three years 
that provide relatively stable cash flows and high utilisation rates. Depending
on market conditions, we may consider reducing the length of our new charters 
to take advantage of the benefits of shorter-term vessel employment, or trade
on the spot market for short periods. Period charters enable us to pursue higher 
leverage on vessel acquisitions, thereby increasing returns on equity.

• Attraction and retention of blue-chip, creditworthy customers. We consider 
customer relationships to be an important factor in maximizing profitability
throughout market cycles and growing our business. We have developed 
a network of business relationships with large, established creditworthy 
charterers of dry-bulk carriers, such as Atlas Shipping, COSCO, DS Norden, ED&F 
Man, STX Pan Ocean and Korea Line. This strong, established customer base 
limits default risk, provides the opportunity for repeat business and we believe 
that it assists us in securing favourable employment for our vessels upon the 
expiration of their present charters.

• Continue to strategically expand the size of the fleet. We intend to acquire
additional second-hand modern, high-quality dry-bulk carriers ideally less than 
12 years old through timely and selective acquisitions in a disciplined manner 
that is accretive to our cash flow and dependent on our assessment of the
shipping cycle. We currently do not plan to order newbuilding vessels due 
to the long delivery times at present (three to four years), but could consider 
them in the future when market conditions warrant.  Initially, we will continue 
to focus on the Panamax and Handymax dry-bulk sectors, but might consider 
acquisitions of other vessel sizes in other sectors when conditions warrant. We 
expect to fund acquisitions of additional vessels using cash reserves set aside 
for this purpose and new bank borrowings as required, and also subsequent 
equity offerings if we think appropriate.

• Maintain low-cost, highly efficient operations with high fleet utilisation.
Through our strong, in-house commercial and technical management teams 
we intend to continue to ensure that our vessels are operated in a cost-efficient
and effective manner without compromising the quality of our fleet or our
operations. We intend to actively monitor and control our vessel operating 
expenses by utilising regular inspection and maintenance programs, employing 
and retaining qualified crew members and taking advantage of the economies
of scale that result from operating sister ships or ships with similar technical 
characteristics. We believe that such an approach to vessel management will 
assist us in maintaining a high fleet utilisation rate and securing attractive
employment for our vessels.

Our Business Strategy



our Fleet

Fleet Expansion

In total $184.8 million was invested in vessel acquisitions during 2007, which 
consisted of one newbuilding and three second-hand vessels as Globus took 
delivery of the following vessels:

In January: the M/V Gulf Globe, a 1994-built 43,245 dwt geared Handymax vessel.

In July: the M/V Island Globe, a 1995-built 73,119 dwt Panamax vessel.

In December: the M/V River Globe, a newbuilding 53,500 dwt geared Handymax 
vessel.

In December: the M/V Tiara Globe, a 1998-built 72,929 dwt geared Panamax vessel.

The following table presents certain information concerning the vessels in our fleet
as at December 31, 2007:

Vessel
Year
Built Yard Type

Month/Year
Delivered DWT FLAG

M/V Lake Globe 1994 Hyundai Handymax 12/2006   43,216 Bahamas

M/V Coral Globe 1994 Hyundai Handymax 11/2006   43,189 Bahamas

M/V Gulf Globe 1994 Hyundai Handymax 1/2007   43,245 Bahamas

M/V Ocean Globe 1995 Hyundai Handymax 9/2006   43,189 Bahamas

M/V Sea Globe 1995 Hyundai Handymax 9/2006   43,171 Bahamas

M/V River Globe 2007 Yangzhou Dayang Handymax 12/2007   53,500 Marshall Islands

M/V Island Globe 1995 Samsung Panamax 7/2007   73,119 Marshall Islands

M/V Tiara Globe 1998 Hudong Zhonghua Panamax 12/2007   72,929 Marshall Islands

Average Age 10.7 Years at 31/12/07 415,558

14
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Our fleet consists of two Panamax and six Handymax vessels that have an
aggregate cargo-carrying capacity of 415,558 dwt, while the weighted average 
age as at December 31, 2007 was 10.7 years. 

Five of our six Handymax dry-bulk carriers are sister ships, while seven of our 
eight current vessels are geared.

We own each of our vessels through separate, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the 
Company which are incorporated in the Marshall Islands. The five Handymax
vessels are flagged in the Bahamas while three vessels are flagged in the Marshall
Islands.

Our dry-bulk carriers transport a variety of major bulk cargoes (such as grain, coal 
and iron-ore) and minor bulk cargoes (such as bauxite, phosphate, sugar, cement, 
steel products and alumina) along worldwide shipping routes. None of our 
vessels operate in areas where European Union, United States or United Nations 
sanctions have been imposed nor in areas that are not covered by our insurance.  
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our Fleet 
Employment

16

Vessel Type Charterer Charter Expiration
 Date (Earliest)

Charter Expiration
Date (Latest)(1)

Gross Daily
Charter rate ($)

M/V Lake Globe Handymax spot

M/V Coral Globe Handymax STX Pan Ocean 10/08 1/09 19,500

M/V Gulf Globe Handymax COSCO 12/08 3/09 22,000

M/V Ocean Globe Handymax spot

M/V Sea Globe Handymax COSCO 11/08 2/09 22,000

M/V River Globe Handymax spot

M/V Tiara Globe Panamax Korea Line 12/09 3/10 66,000

M/V Island Globe Panamax DS Norden 6/09 8/09 30,000

 Our Fleet Employment

 We charter our vessels to customers under time charters. A time charter involves 
the hiring of a vessel from its owner for a period of time pursuant to a contract 
under which the vessel owner places its ship (including its crew and equipment) 
at the disposal of the charterer. Under a time charter, the charterer typically pays 
a fixed or reducing daily charter rate and bears all voyage expenses, including the
cost of bunkers (i.e. fuel) and port and canal charges. Subject to any restrictions 
specified and agreed in the contract, the charterer determines the type and
quantity of cargo to be carried and the ports of loading and discharging. 
The technical operation and navigation of the vessel at all times remains our 
responsibility as the vessel owner. We are generally responsible for the vessel’s 
operating expenses, including the cost of crewing, insuring, repairing and 
maintaining the vessel, the cost of spares and consumable stores, tonnage taxes 
and other miscellaneous expenses.

We strategically monitor developments in the shipping industry on a regular basis 
and, subject to market demand, negotiate the charter hire periods for our vessels 
according to prevailing market conditions and our expectations of future market 
conditions. 

Throughout 2007, with the exception of the M/V River Globe which traded in the 
spot market in December, all of our vessels were employed on short-to-long-term 
charters. 

16

Note
(1) The latest charter expiration date represents the last day on which the charterer may redeliver the vessel to us upon 
the termination of the charter assuming that all options for additional hire periods under our charter are exercised, 
including taking into account expected off-hire days because of scheduled dry-dockings.



17

The vessels are currently trading as follows:

The M/V Lake Globe finished its time charter (T/C) with Atlas Shipping at the
gross rate of $24,000 per day on February 17, 2008. Currently the vessel is fixed at
$42,250 gross per day.

The M/V Coral Globe is presently under a T/C dated September 12, 2006 with 
STX Pan Ocean, for a period of 23 to 25 months, at a gross rate of $22,000 per 
day for the first 365 days of the charter and $17,000 per day for the remaining
duration of the charter. For purposes of revenue recognition, the daily charter 
hire included in our consolidated financial information is based on the average
amount payable over the charter term, namely $19,500.

The M/V Gulf Globe is presently under a T/C dated January 4, 2007 with COSCO, 
for a period of 23 to 25.5 months at a gross rate of $22,000 per day.

The M/V Ocean Globe finished its T/C with Cosco at the gross rate of $21,000 per
day on February 2, 2008. Currently the vessel is fixed at $50,000 gross per day.

The M/V Sea Globe is presently under a T/C dated January 15, 2007 with COSCO, 
for a period of 17 to 19 months at a gross rate of $22,000 per day.

The newbuilding M/V River Globe is currently trading on the spot market, fixed
at $60,000 gross per day.

The M/V Tiara Globe is presently under a T/C dated November 22, 2007 with 
Korea Line Corp, for a period of minimum 24 to maximum 26 months at a gross 
rate of $66,000 per day.

The M/V Island Globe is presently under a T/C dated April 10, 2007 with DS 
Norden, for a period of 23 to about 25 months at a gross rate of $30,000 per day.

We seek to fix charters with customers whom we perceive as blue-chip and thus
creditworthy customers thereby minimizing the risk of default by our charterers. 
We also try to select charterers depending on the type of product they want to 
carry and the geographical areas in which they tend to trade.

The current charter coverage for 2008 and 2009 is 65% and 25% of the available 
days respectively.

Our customers
Our assessment of a charterer’s financial condition and reliability is an important factor in negotiating
employment for our vessels. We generally charter our vessels to major operators, trading houses (including 
commodities traders), major shipping companies and major producers and government-owned entities 
rather than to more speculative or undercapitalised entities. Since our operations began in September 2006, 
our customers have included Atlas Shipping, COSCO, DS Norden, ED&F Man, STX Pan Ocean and Korea Line. In 
addition, at various occasions during the periods of the time charters to the charterers mentioned above, 
our vessels have been sub-chartered to charterers such as Cargill, Oldendorff and Armada.
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George Vombiris (Age 65), Technical manager
Mr. Vombiris has over 40 years shipping experience. Mr. Vombiris has previously 
worked as a technical manager for LMZ Transoil Shipping Enterprises (1999-2003), 
a technical co-ordinator for Dynacom Tankers Limited from 1994 to 1999 and a 
superintendent technical engineer for Sun Enterprises Limited (a member of S. 
Livanos Group) from 1966 to 1994. Mr. Vombiris holds a BSc in mechanical and 
electrical engineering from Manchester University.

Captain Stefanos Melidis (Age 59), Operations manager
Captain Melidis has over 28 years of shipping experience. Captain Melidis has 
worked as an operator and chartering manager for a number of vessels since 1985 
and has previously worked as a Port Captain (1985-1990) and a Master Mariner 
(1978-1984). Captain Melidis holds a Master Mariner’s Degree (1978) and a Chief 
Officer’s Degree (1973).

Marianna Simiakaki (Age 54), Accounts manager
Mrs. Simiakaki has approximately 25 years of shipping experience. Mrs. Simiakaki 
has worked as an accountant for a number of shipping companies including 
Millennium Seacarriers Inc., Express Sea Transport Corp. and Millennium Enterprises 
Inc. Mrs. Simiakaki also spent five years (from 1999 to 2004) working for Hellenic
Management Centre training and consulting shipping companies. Mrs. Simiakaki 
holds a BSc in Accounting from the University of Athens and is the holder of an A 
Class Licence from the Greek Chamber of Economics.

Our executive management team, which includes our two executive directors and 
three members of our senior management, is led by our Chief Executive Officer
and co-founder, George Karageorgiou and has a total of over 119 years experience 
in the shipping industry. The executive management team is responsible for the 
full strategic management of our fleet, including:

• acquisitions and disposals of vessels;
• charter decisions (i.e. type, length, pricing and counterparties);
• strategic management and development of relationships with key customers, 
insurance companies, banks and ship brokers;
• monitoring of the technical management of the fleet by our wholly-owned
subsidiary.
• reporting and monitoring of key financial information and KPIs; and
• maintenance of a strong financial position.

our Fleet Manager 
Executive Team
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The technical and day-to-day commercial management of our fleet is currently
the responsibility of our wholly-owned subsidiary, GSC which currently has 
ship management agreements in place with each of our eight vessel-owning 
companies and is expected to enter into similar arrangements with any future 
vessel-owning companies. These agreements can be terminated by written 
notice from the vessel-owning company.  Under the various ship management 
agreements, GSC provides the relevant wholly-owned subsidiary with the 
following specific services:

• arranging the employment of the ships on voyage or time charter basis;
• recruiting and employing seamen and arranging for the execution of the 

contracts of employment;
• settling and attending to the payment of all salaries and compensations and 

travel expenses to the crews in accordance with law;
• attending to the due and regular operation and performance of the ships, 

including loading and discharging, settlements of claims, surveys etc;
• settling any fiscal or tax charges concerning the ships;
• attending to the maintenance, repairs, modifications, supply and classification

requirements of the ships;
• carrying out the supply of the bunkers, lubricants and other kind of materials, 

stores and provisions;
• appointing shipping agents at any port of the world and processing the 

reimbursement of the said local port agents subject to the applicable 
accounting and representation principles;            

• receiving and paying monies in the name of the vessel-owning company and 
maintaining accounts at various banks; and

• negotiating and executing contracts for the 
modification or repairs in shipyards worldwide
and generally performing every and all actions 
necessary for the accomplishment of the above 
or in connection therewith.
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As the Company is a holding company, 
with no material assets other than the 
shares of its subsidiaries, its ability to pay 
dividends depends on the earnings and 
cash flow of those subsidiaries and their
ability to pay dividends to the Company. 

The Company has adopted a dividend 
policy which reflects its long-term net
profits and cash flow potential, maintain-
ing an appropriate level of dividend cov-
er taking into account the likely effects of
the shipping cycle and the need to retain 
cash to reinvest in vessel acquisitions. The 
Company maintains a dividend payment 
ratio in excess of 50% of its net profits.
Higher payout ratios may occasionally be 
appropriate in times of cyclically lower 
net profits, in order to better provide in-
vestors with a stable income on invested 
capital subject to the cap on dividends at 
75% of net profits (as provided in the ex-
isting bank loan agreements).

The appropriate level of dividend payout 
is appraised by reference to the US dol-
lar net profits of the Company, every six
months. However, the amount payable 
to investors will be declared in US dollars 
but paid in pounds sterling, twice per an-
num.

Furthermore, the net profits of the Group
taken into account for the calculation of 
the dividend exclude any gain or loss 
on the sale of vessels and any unrealised 
gains or losses on derivatives. The use of 
any capital surpluses arising from vessel 
sales is considered in the light of, amongst 
other things, the return on capital avail-
able from reinvesting such proceeds in 
further ships and the most appropriate 
timing of any such reinvestment.

The Company intends to pay an interim 
dividend in or around September of each 

financial year in respect of the profits
arising during the first six months of that
financial year, and a final dividend in or
around May in respect of the profits aris-
ing during the last six months of the prior 
financial year.

On August 22, 2007, the Company de-
clared its first interim dividend as a pub-
licly-listed company to its Shareholders of 
record on September 7, 2007 of $0.82 mil-
lion in aggregate (approximately $0.286 
per share); GB 1.44 pence per share was 
paid on September 24, 2007. 

Subject to Shareholder approval, the di-
rectors recommend a final dividend of
GB 7.31 pence per share, or a final payout
of GBP 2 million ($4.1 million), which is 
based on the Net Income for the second 
half of 2007. The final dividend payment
is expected to be approved by the share-
holders at the Annual General Meeting 
which will be held on May 7, 2008 and will 
then be payable on May 9, 2008 to share-
holders on record as of April 11, 2008. The 
ex-dividend date is April 9, 2008.

Together with the interim dividend of GB 
1.44 pence per share which was based 
on the net income for the single month 
of June 2007, the only month during the 
first half of 2007 that Globus operated as
a public company, Globus’ total dividend 
for the seven month period from June 1, 
2007 to December 31, 2007 that Globus 
was a public company will be GB 8.75 
pence per share.

Prior to admission on AIM, on May 31, 
2007, the Company had declared an ex-
traordinary interim dividend in the ag-
gregate amount of $2.1 million (approx 
$10.4 cents per share). This was paid on 
September 24, 2007 to the shareholders 
on record as of May 31, 2007.

our Dividend 
Policy 



  

Combined Code

The directors support high standards of 
corporate governance. The directors con-
firm that, (having regard to the Company’s
size and nature) we are in compliance, so 
far as we consider practicable and ap-
propriate, with the Combined Code tak-
ing into account the recommendations 
of the Quoted Companies Alliance (QCA) 
referred to below.

The Combined Code is a code of desir-
able corporate governance practices and 
procedures for public companies trading 
on markets in the UK, and is based on 
recommendations made by a number 
of committees which have been set up 
from time to time to consider corporate 
governance best practice in the UK. On 
a strict interpretation of the Combined 
Code, it applies only to companies which 
are admitted to the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange and it is there-
fore up to an AIM company’s directors 
and its nominated adviser to decide the 
extent to which the AIM company will 
comply with the Combined Code.

The QCA has also published corporate 
governance guidelines for AIM listed 
companies. These guidelines acknowl-
edge that compliance with certain of the 
provisions of the Combined Code will be 
inappropriate for, or take longer to imple-
ment by, AIM listed companies because 
of their nature and resources.

The QCA Guidelines recommend that 
there be a formal schedule of matters 
specifically reserved for the board’s deci-
sion and sets out a specimen list of such 
matters and that the board be supplied 
with information in a timely manner so 
as to enable it to discharge its duties. The 
QCA Guidelines also recommend that 

the roles of chairman and chief executive 
should not be exercised by the same in-
dividual and that a company have at least 
two independent non-executive direc-
tors (one of whom should be the Chair-
man). Furthermore, all directors should 
be submitted for re-election at regular in-
tervals subject to continued satisfactory 
performance. The QCA Guidelines also 
recommend the establishment of Audit, 
Remuneration and Nomination Com-
mittees and that the Audit and Remu-
neration Committees should comprise at 
least two members all of whom should 
be independent non-executive directors.

We do not comply with the QCA Guide-
lines in all respects. In particular, our 
Chairman, Mr, Feidakis, is our ultimate 
controlling Shareholder and is therefore 
not independent. Additionally, our Remu-
neration and Nomination Committees do 
not comprise solely of independent non-
executive directors. 

Committees

We have established an Audit Commit-
tee, a Remuneration Committee and a 
Nomination Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises our two 
independent non-executive directors. It is 
responsible for ensuring that our financial
performance is properly reported on and 
monitored and reviewing internal control 
systems and the auditors’ reports relating 
to our accounts.

The Remuneration Committee comprises 
our two independent non-executive di-
rectors and Mr. Feidakis, our non-execu-
tive Chairman. It is responsible for deter-
mining and agreeing with the Board the 
framework for the remuneration of the 

Corporate  
Governance Statement 
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Chief Executive Officer, all other execu-
tive directors, the Company Secretary 
and such other members of the execu-
tive management as it is designated to 
consider. It is furthermore responsible for 
determining the total individual remuner-
ation packages of each director including, 
where appropriate, bonuses, incentive 
payments and share options. The Remu-
neration Committee also liaises with the 
Nomination Committee to ensure that 
the remuneration of newly appointed ex-
ecutives is within our overall policy. More 
details are set out in directors remunera-
tion report on pages 23-25. 

The Nomination Committee comprises 
our two independent non-executive di-
rectors and Mr. Feidakis, our non-execu-
tive Chairman. It is responsible for review-
ing the structure, size and composition of 
the Board, preparing a description of the 
role and capabilities required for a par-
ticular appointment and identifying and 
nominating candidates to fill Board posi-
tions as and when they arise.

The Company has adopted a share deal-
ing code for directors and relevant em-
ployees and will take proper steps to 

ensure compliance by the directors and 
those employees.

Relations with shareholders
and investors

Copies of the annual report and 
accounts and the interim statements 
are issued to all shareholders and 
copies are available on the company’s 
website: www.globusmaritime.gr. The 
Company makes full use of its website 
to provide information to shareholders 
and other interested parties.

During the period, the C.E.O. and the 
C.F.O. met with institutional investors 
at numerous meetings arranged by 
the Company’s brokers as well as the 
Company’s financial PR advisers.

Going concern

The directors are required to be satis-
fied that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in business for the 
foreseeable future. A review has been 
conducted and the directors have con-
cluded that such resources are available 
and that the going concern basis is jus-
tified in the preparation of the financial
statements

Corporate Governance Statement (continued)



Date Cash (GBP) New Shares

Mr. George Feidakis 6 September 2007 10,000

3 December 2007 10,000

Mr. Amir Eilon 6 September 2007 6,250

3 October 2007 920

3 December 2007 6,250

4 December 2007 620

Mr. Arjun Batra 6 September 2007 6,250

26 September 2007 920

3 December 2007 6,250

4 December 2007 620

TOTAL 45,000 3,080

Non-executive directors’ fees

All three of our non-executive directors 
have letters of appointment dated May 
18, 2007 with provision for termination of 
3 months’ notice. The term for our non-
executive chairman is for an initial period 
of three years, while the term for the two 
non-executive directors is for an initial 
period of two years.

As per their respective letters of appoint-
ment, our three non-executive directors 
were remunerated during 2007 by quar-
terly cash payments as well as by quarter-
ly allotments of new shares, summarised 
in the table below:

Executive directors and executives 
of our Fleet Manager GSC

Compensation philosophy and 
objectives

The Company believes that its executive 
compensation program should reward 
executives for enhancing the Company’s 
long-term performance while delivering 
favourable annual operating results. The 
Remuneration Committee evaluates both 
performance and compensation so that 
the Company may attract and retain supe-
rior executives and maintain compensa-
tion competitive to that of our peer com-
panies for similarly situated executives.

Elements of Compensation

Our executive officer compensation
strategy has been designed to motivate 
and retain our executive officers and to
align their interests with those of our 
Shareholders. Our primary objective in 
determining the compensation of our 
executive officers is to encourage them
to build the Company in a way that will 
achieve our business goals of prudent 
growth, generation of stable and pre-
dictable cash flows, dividend growth,
and increased market valuation.

The Company’s executive compensa-
tion packages include both cash and 

equity-based compensation to meet 
the objectives stated above. The prin-
cipal components of compensation for 
our executives currently are salary, an-
nual cash bonuses and equity awards 
in the form of awards over Ordinary 
Shares under the Globus Maritime In-
centive Plan. 

Annual Salary and Bonus

The two cash components of compensa-
tion provide our executives with imme-
diately realizable rewards for perform-
ance on an annual basis. The salaries of 
our executive officers are reviewed on
an annual basis. Adjustments in salary 

directors’  
Remuneration Report 
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are based on the evaluation of individual 
performance, the Company’s overall per-
formance during a given financial year and
the individual’s contribution to our overall 
performance. With respect to determining 
bonuses, the Remuneration Committee 
considers the following factors:
• average operating expenses per ship per 

day;
• overall fleet utilisation;
• average overhead burden per ship per 

day (excluding corporate-related ex-
penses);

• unplanned incidents;
• dry-docking budget performance; and
• growth in earnings before interest, taxes, 

depreciation and amortization (EBITDA).

In any financial year of the Company, an
individual may not be granted a bonus in 
excess of 100% of his annual base salary.
During the period our two Executive 
directors, namely our C.E.O. and our 
C.F.O., received the amounts net of 
contributions, shown in Euro in the table 
below:

The Globus Maritime Incentive Plan
 (the ‘‘Plan’’)

We allocate a significant portion of an-
nual compensation to awards over Shares 
(‘‘Awards’’) under the Plan, as we believe 
that equity awards are important to align 
our executives’ interests with those of our 
Shareholders.

The grant level of Awards to any executive 
under the Plan is subject to the perform-
ance condition as set out below. Awards 
vest in tranches over three years.

The Board believes that these Awards 
will keep our executive officers focused
on the growth of the Company, as well 
as dividend growth and its impact on our 
share price, over an extended time pe-
riod. In addition, the Board believes the 
gradual vesting schedule of these Awards 
will help us retain both our executive of-
ficers and key employees.

The Plan was adopted by the Board and is 
administered by the Remuneration Com-
mittee.

Grant of Awards

Awards will be granted on an annual ba-
sis. Awards may generally only be granted 
in the period of four weeks commencing 
on the day following:
• the Plan being adopted;
• any amendment to the Plan taking effect;

or
• an announcement by the Company of 

its results for any period, or the issue by 
the Company of a prospectus or similar 
document.

However, the grant of any Awards under 
the Plan will be subject to the following 
performance condition:

Performance Condition

The Remuneration Committee compares 
the Company’s performance in terms of 
Total Shareholder Return (‘‘TSR’’) relative 
to a peer group of publicly listed drybulk 
shipping companies. The peer group 
comprises of the following companies: 

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Salary and fees Benefits Cash bonus New Shares as 
(in Euro) (in Euro) (in Euro) part of their bonus

Mr. George Karageorgiou 247,780 3,000 175,000 26,118

Mr. Elias Deftereos 67,940 3,000 10,143 1,514

Total 315,720 6,000 185,143 27,632



• United Kingdom: Global Oceanic Car-
riers Limited, Goldenport Holdings 
Inc; and

• United States: Diana Shipping Inc, Ex-
cel Maritime Carriers Ltd, Navios Mari-
time Holdings Inc, DryShips Inc, Eagle 
Bulk Shipping Inc, Euroseas Ltd, Free-
Seas Inc, Genco Shipping & Trading 
Limited, OceanFreight Inc, Quintana 
Maritime Limited.

The Company believes that TSR, meas-
ured relative to the performance of 
comparable companies, is the best way 
of evaluating the Company’s perform-
ance and measuring value creation for 
Shareholders.

If, on the purported date of grant, the 
Company ranks below the twenti-
eth percentile within the Comparator 
Group, then no Awards may be grant-
ed. If the Company achieves or exceeds 
the twentieth percentile, the number 
of Ordinary Shares which may be made 
subject to an Award to a particular in-
dividual on the date of grant shall be 
restricted to a percentage of the ‘‘indi-
vidual limit’’ referred to below.

This percentage shall be calculated on a 
straight-line basis from 17.5% of the in-
dividual limit (if the Company achieves 
the twentieth percentile) to 100% (if the 
Company achieves the hundredth per-
centile).

The above targets will be reviewed an-
nually.

Individual Limit

In any financial year of the Company,
no participant may be granted Awards 
over Shares with a market value (on the 
relevant date(s) of grant) in excess of 
200% of the aggregate of the partici-
pant’s annual salary and bonus.

Vesting of Awards

Subject to what is set out below, Awards 
vest proportionally over a three-year pe-
riod from their date of grant and vested   
Shares subject to Awards will be deliv-
ered to participants within the 30 days 
that follow the first, second and third
anniversaries of the date of grant of the 
relevant Award.

If the participant is summarily dismissed 
from his employment for cause, his 
Award in respect of vested and unvest-
ed Shares will lapse in its entirety.

In all other circumstances of cessation 
of employment, the participant shall re-
tain his vested Award but any unvested 
Award shall lapse. Vested Shares subject 
to Awards in such circumstances will be 
delivered to participants within the 30 
days that follow cessation of employ-
ment.

Overall Limit

Not more than 10% of the Company’s 
issued share capital (including shares 
held in treasury) may be made subject 
to awards or options granted under the 
Plan or any other share-based employee 
incentive plan established by the Com-
pany in any ten-year period.

Event after the Balance Sheet Date
During the period, only our C.E.O. was 
eligible under the Plan. On March 4, 
2008, as the Company ranked second 
based on the TSR of the peer group, the 
Company granted a conditional award 
over 237,342 shares to the C.E.O., with 
a conditional right for the shares to be 
allotted and delivered to him at nil cost 
over the next 3 years.

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Group financial statements in accordance
with applicable Jersey law and generally accepted accounting principles.

Jersey company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each finan-
cial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors
should:

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to
ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991
(as amended) and AIM rules for companies.  They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

statement of 
Directors’ Responsibilities 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED

We have audited the company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related 
notes 1 to 24.  These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out 
therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Article 110 of 
the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other 
purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
Jersey law as set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are 
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.  We also report to you if, in 
our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records or if we have not received all the 
information and explanations we require for our audit.

We read the Directors’ Report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued 
by the Auditing Practices Board.  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  It also includes an assessment of the significant 
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or 
error.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in 
the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the 
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

Jersey, Channel Islands
Date: 18 March 2008
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GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 2007 (Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)

ASSETS Note 2007 2006

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Vessels, net 5 273,720 97,223
Advance for vessel acquisition - 2,475
Office furniture and equipment 51 3
Other assets 10 10

Total non-current assets 273,781 99,711

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 9,341 2,069
Restricted cash 732 368
Due from shareholders 4 - 14
Due from related parties 4 - 489
Trade receivables, net 35 19
Inventories 6 553 382
Prepayments and other assets 7 1,058 1,049

Total current assets 11,719 4,390

TOTAL ASSETS 285,500 104,101

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Share capital 10 29 14
Share premium 10,12 87,411 28,783
Retained earnings 9,237 940
Shareholders' equity attributable to
Globus Maritime Limited Shareholders 96,677 29,737
Minority interest 12 - 5,298

Total shareholders' equity 96,677 35,035

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings, net of current portion 13 157,039 53,509
Provision 30 -
Seller's credit - 966

Total non-current liabilities 157,069 54,475

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term borrowings 13 25,477 12,574
Trade accounts payable 8 3,093 613
Due to related parties 4 - 77
Accrued liabilities and other payables 9 745 504
Deferred revenue 2,439 823

Total current liabilities 31,754 14,591

TOTAL LIABILITIES 188,823 69,066

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 285,500 104,101

               December 31, 

GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED

The accompanying notes on pages 33 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2007
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars, except per share data)

Note
For the year

ended December 31,

For the period from
September 15, (date operations

commenced) to December 31,

2007 2006
REVENUE:

Time charter revenue 40,960 5,244

EXPENSES:

Voyage expenses 15 (2,245) (265)

Vessels operating expenses 15 (7,639) (1,123)

Depreciation 5 (10,212) (1,269)

Depreciation of dry docking costs 5 (1,033) (133)

Administrative expenses 16 (1,476) (76)

Administrative expenses payable to related parties 4 (1,573) (502)

Other expenses (36) -

Operating profit before finance costs 16,746 1,876

Interest income 577 56

Interest expense and finance costs 17 (5,596) (884)

Foreign exchange gain/(losses), net 298 (2)

Total finance costs, net (4,721) (830)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR / PERIOD 12,025 1,046

Attributable to:

Globus Maritime Limited shareholders 11,210 940

Minority interest 815 106

12,025 1,046

Earnings per share ($):

�- Basic and diluted EPS for the year 11 0.4713 -

The accompanying notes on pages 33 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
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GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2007
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars, except share and per share data)

Number of Par Issued Share Retained Minority Total
Shares Value Share Premium Earnings Interest Shareholders'

Capital Equity

Balance September 15, 2006 - - - - - - -

Profit for the period - - - - 940 106 1,046

Issuance of share capital 7,333 2 14 - - - 14

Capital contributions - - - 28,783 - 5,192 33,975

Balance at December 31, 2006 7,333 2 14 28,783 940 5,298 35,035

Profit for the year - - -� - 11,210 815 12,025

Issuance of share capital (Note 10) 402 2 1 - - - 1

Capital contributions (Note 10) -� - - 1,575 - 4,000 5,575

Acquisition of minority interest (Note 12) 2,342 2 4 10,109 - (10,113) -

Conversion of share capital (Note 10) 20,174,154 0.001 -� -� -� -� -

Proceeds from initial public offering (Note 10) 8,423,333 0.001 10 50,017 - - 50,027

Transaction costs - - - (3,449) - - (3,449)

Share based payment (Note 14) �38,666 �0.001 �- �376 4 - 380

Dividends paid (Note 18) - - - - (2,917) - (2,917)

Balance at December 31, 2007 28,636,153 0.001 29 87,411 9,237 - 96,677

Common Stock

The accompanying notes on pages 33 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
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GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Expressed in thousands of U.S. Dollars)

�Note

For the year ended 
December 31, 

For the period from
September 15

to December 31,

2007 2006
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Profit for the year/period 12,025 1,046
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 10,212 1,269
Depreciation of deferred dry docking costs 1,033 133
Provision 30 -
Interest expense and finance cost 5,596 884
Interest income (577) (56)
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net (298) 2
Share based payment 380 -

(Increase)/Decrease in:
Due from related parties 489 (489)
Trade receivables, net (16) (19)
Inventories (171) (382)
Prepayments and other assets (1,020) (44)

Increase/(Decrease) in:
Trade accounts payable 2,480 613
Due to related parties (77) 77
Accrued liabilities and other payables 234 210
Deferred revenue 1,616 823

Net cash provided by operating activities 31,936 4,067

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Vessel acquisition (184,841) (99,750)
Advance for vessel purchase - (2,475)
Deferred dry docking costs (1,688) -
Fixed asset purchase (80) (3)
Seller’s credit 1,294 1,125
Interest received 583 54
Net cash used in investing activities (184,732) (101,049)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt     147,000 68,000
Repayment of long-term debt (30,115) (1,650)
Contributions to paid in capital 5,575 28,783
Contributions from the Minority Interest - 5,192
Proceeds from issuance of share capital, net of transaction costs 46,593 -
     Guarantee deposit with Greek tax authorities - (10)
Restricted cash (364) (368)
Payment of financing costs (549) (313)
     Dividends paid (2,917) -
     Interest paid (5,453) (581)
Net cash provided by financing activities 159,770 99,053

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,974 2,071
Net foreign exchange difference 298 (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 3 2,069 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 3 9,341 2,069

The accompanying notes on pages 33 to 55 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
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1.     General Information

The consolidated financial statements of Globus Maritime Limited (the “Company” or “Globus”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) include the financial statements of the following companies:

Globus Shipmanagement Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements also include the financial statements of the following vessel-owning
subsidiaries, all wholly owned as at December 31, 2007: 

The principal business of the Group is the ownership and operation of a fleet of dry-bulk vessels, providing
maritime services for the transportation of dry cargo products on a worldwide basis. The Group conducts 
its operations through its vessel-owning companies. During the year ended December 31, 2007, all vessels 
operated on unique time charters with six different charterers.

On June 1, 2007, Globus Maritime Limited concluded its initial public offering in the United Kingdom and its
shares were admitted for trading on AIM (Admission). In this respect, 8,423,333 common shares were placed 
at an offering price of $5.9391 per share (GB 300 pence). The proceeds of the offering after expenses were
$46,578.

The address of the registered office of the Company is: Walker House, PO Box 72, 28-34 Hill Street, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 8PN.

The operations of the vessels are managed by Globus Shipmanagement Corp. (the “Manager”), a wholly 
owned Marshall Islands corporation. The Manager has an office in Greece located at 128 Vouliagmenis
Avenue, 166 74 Glyfada, Greece, and provides the commercial, technical, cash management and accounting 
services necessary for the operation of the fleet in exchange for a management fee. The management fee is
eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors dated on February 29, 2008.

   Company Country of
Incorporation

Vessel Delivery
Date

Vessel Owned

Chantal Maritime Co. Marshall Islands September 15, 2006 Ocean Globe

Sibelle Marine Inc. Marshall Islands September 26, 2006 Sea Globe

Supreme Navigation Co. Marshall Islands November 14, 2006 Coral Globe

Adagio Marine S. A. Marshall Islands December 6, 2006 Lake Globe

Abrosa Shipping Inc. Marshall Islands January 11, 2007 Gulf Globe

Eleanor Maritime Limited Marshall Islands July 9, 2007 Island Globe

Devocean Maritime Ltd. Marshall Islands December 18, 2007 River Globe

Elysium Maritime Limited Marshall Islands December 18, 2007 Tiara Globe

Company Country of
Incorporation

Date of
Incorporation

Activity

Globus Maritime Limited Jersey July 26, 2006 Holding Co. 

Globus Shipmanagement Corp. Marshall Islands July 26, 2006 Management Co.
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(continued)

2.     Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

2.1   Basis of Preparation: The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in US Dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ($000) except when
otherwise indicated.  

Statement of Compliance: The consolidated financial statements of Globus Maritime Limited and all its subsidiaries (‘the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the EU. 

Basis of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries listed in note 1. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. All material inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated 
upon consolidation. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to 
be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. 

Minority interest represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Group and are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from 
the parent shareholder’s equity. Acquisitions of minority interests are accounted for using the entity concept method, 
whereby the difference between the consideration and book value of the share of net assets acquired is reflected as
an equity transaction. As of December 31, 2007, all subsidiaries were wholly owned by the Company and no minority 
interest remained.

2.2   Standards amendments and interpretations:  

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year. Adoption of these 
revised standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group. They
did however give rise to additional disclosure. 

         IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosure that enables users of the financial statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments. The new disclosures
are included throughout the financial statements. While there has been no effect on the financial position or results,
comparative information has been revised where needed. 

          IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

This amendment requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. The new disclosures are shown in Note 22. 

          IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2

This interpretation requires IFRS 2 to be applied to any arrangements in which the entity cannot identify specifically some
or all of the goods received, in particular where equity instruments are issued for consideration, which appears to be less 
than fair value. As equity instruments are only issued in accordance with the share based compensation plan defined in
Note 2.24, the interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 9 requires an entity to assess whether a contract contains an embedded derivative at the date an entity first becomes
a party to the contract and prohibits reassessment unless there is a change to the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows. As the Group has no embedded derivatives requiring separation from the host contract, the interpretation had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group adopted IFRIC interpretation 10 as of January 1, 2007 which requires that, should any impairment losses be 
recognised in the interim financial statements in relation to goodwill or an interpretation in either an equity investment or
a financial asset carried at cost, these may not be reversed in later interim periods or when preparing the annual financial
statements. As the Group has not previously recognised any impairment losses, the interpretation had no impact on the 
financial position or performance of the Group.  



GLOBUS MARITIME LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
(Amounts presented in thousands of U.S. Dollars unless otherwise indicated)

35

Certain new standards and interpretations and, amendments or revisions to existing standards have been published 
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007 or later periods but which 
the Group, where applicable and appropriate, has either (i) adopted, (ii) not early adopted or, (iii) not adopted as such 
pronouncements are not relevant to the Group’s operations, are as follows:

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2-Group and Treasury Share Transactions 

IFRIC 11 was issued in November 2006 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 March 2007.
This Interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity’s equity instruments to 
be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme by an entity even if the entity chooses or is required to buy those equity 
instruments from another party, or the shareholders of the entity provide the equity instruments needed. The Interpretation 
also extends to the way in which subsidiaries, in their separate financial statements, account for schemes when their
employees receive rights to equity instruments of the parent. IFRIC 11 is not relevant to the Group’s operations.

IFRS 3, Business Combinations and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements – Revised

The revisions to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 were issued in January 2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. As regards IFRS 3, this will apply to business combinations occurring in those periods and its scope has 
been revised to include combinations of mutual entities and combinations without consideration (dual listed shares). 
IFRS 3 and IAS 27, inter alia, require greater use of fair value through the income statement and cement the economic 
entity concept of the reporting entity. Furthermore, these standards also introduce the following requirements (i) to 
remeasure interests to fair value when control is obtained or lost, (ii) recognising directly in equity the impact of all 
transactions between controlling and non-controlling shareholders where loss of control is not lost and, (iii) focuses on 
what is given to the vendor as consideration rather than what is spent to achieve the acquisition. More specifically, items
such as acquisition-related costs, changes in the value of the contingent consideration, share-based payments and the 
settlement of pre-existing contracts will generally be accounted for separately from the business combination and will 
often affect the income statement. The revisions to the Standards have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC Interpretation 12 was issued in November 2006 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 
January 2008. This Interpretation applies to service concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations 
undertaken and rights received in service concession arrangements. As the Group is not an operator, this Interpretation 
will have no impact on it. This Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC Interpretation 13 was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
This Interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales 
transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the 
award credits and deferred over the period that the award credits are fulfilled. The Group expects that this interpretation
will have no impact on the Group’s financial statements as no such schemes currently exist. This Interpretation has not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

IFRIC Interpretation 14 was issued in July 2007 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2008. This Interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset under IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

The Group expects that this Interpretation will have no impact on its financial position or performance as it does not
operate funded defined benefit schemes. This Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

Amendment to IFRS 2 Share based payment: “vesting conditions and cancellations”.  The amendment to the Standard 
has not yet been endorsed by the EU.   

2.3  Use of Estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses
recognised during the reporting period.  However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.
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The estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
are estimations in relation to useful lives of vessels, the scrap value of vessels and estimated dry docking dates. In the 
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has not made any judgements that had a significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, apart from those involving estimations described above.

2.4   Accounting for Revenue and Related Expenses: The Group generates its revenues from charterers for the charter hire 
of its vessels.  Vessels are chartered using time charters, where a contract is entered into for the use of a vessel for a 
specific period of time and a specified daily charter hire rate. If a time charter agreement exists and collection of the
related revenue is reasonably assured, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the period of the time charter. 
Such revenues are treated in accordance with IAS 17 as lease income as explained in note 2.22 below. Associated voyage 
expenses, which primarily consist of commissions, are recognised on a pro-rata basis over the duration of the period 
of the time charter. Deferred revenue relates to cash received prior to the balance sheet date and is related to revenue 
earned after such date.
Deferred revenue also includes the value ascribed to time charter agreements assumed upon the purchase of a vessel, 
if any. This ascribed amount is amortised over the remaining term of the time charter and the amortised portion for the 
period is included in revenue for the period. Other voyage expenses primarily consisting of port expenses paid by the 
charterer, canal and bunker expenses that are unique to a particular charter under time charter arrangements or by the 
Group under voyage charter arrangements. Furthermore, voyage expenses include commission on income paid by the 
Group. The Group defers bunker expenses under voyage charter agreements and amortises them over the related voyage. 
Vessel operating expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

2.5    Foreign Currency Translation: The functional currency of the Company is the U.S. dollar, which is also the presentation 
currency of the Group, because the Group’s vessels operate in international shipping markets, whereby the U.S. dollar 
is the currency used for transactions. Transactions involving other currencies during the period are converted into U.S. 
dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the time of the transactions. At the balance sheet dates, monetary assets and
liabilities, which are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, are translated into the functional currency using 
the period-end exchange rate. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in foreign currency 
gain or loss in the consolidated income statement. 

2.6    Cash and Cash Equivalents:  The Group considers highly liquid investments such as time deposits and certificates of
deposit with original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

2.7    Restricted Cash: The loan agreements require the vessel-owning companies to fund loan retention accounts in their name.  
Each month, an amount equivalent to one third of the loan instalments payable on the next instalment date (based on the 
frequency of the repayment, i.e. quarterly) plus interest for the month, must be deposited into the loan retention account.  
The funds may only be used for the purpose of loan repayment and are classified as restricted cash under current assets.

2.8    Trade Receivables, net: The amount shown as trade receivables at each balance sheet date includes estimated recoveries 
from charterers for hire, freight and demurrage billings, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. At each balance sheet 
date, all potentially uncollectible accounts are assessed individually for the purpose of determining the appropriate 
allowance for doubtful accounts. There is no provision for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2007.

2.9    Inventories: Inventories consist of lubricants and gas cylinders and are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 
The cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method.

2.10  Vessels, net:  Vessels are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Vessel 
cost consists of the contract price for the vessel and any material expenses incurred upon acquisition (initial repairs, 
improvements and delivery expenses, interest and on-site supervision costs incurred during the construction periods). 
Any seller’s credit, i.e. amounts received from the seller of the vessels until date of delivery is deducted from the cost of 
the vessel. Subsequent expenditures for conversions and major improvements are also capitalised when the recognition 
criteria are met. Otherwise these amounts are charged to expenses as incurred. 

When the Group acquires a vessel with a time charter agreement assumed, the cost of acquisition is allocated between the 
individual assets and / or liabilities assumed based on their relative fair values at the time of acquisition. The time charter 
agreement assumed can be assigned a positive value (asset) or a negative value (deferred revenue) or zero value. 

During the period ended December 31, 2006, one vessel was purchased with a time charter agreement attached which 
was considered to have zero fair value at the time of acquisition. During the year ended December 31, 2007, no vessels were 
purchased with a time charter agreement attached.
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2.11  Deferred Dry-Docking Costs: Vessels are required to be dry-docked for major repairs and maintenance that cannot be 
performed while the vessels are operating. Dry-dockings occur approximately every 2.5 years. The costs associated with 
the dry-dockings are capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period between dry-dockings, to a 
maximum of 2.5 years.

At the date of acquisition of a second-hand vessel, management estimates the component of the cost that corresponds 
to the economic benefit to be derived until the first scheduled dry-docking of the vessel under the ownership of the
Group and this component is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining period through the estimated 
dry-docking date.

2.12  Depreciation: The cost of each of the Group’s vessels is depreciated on a straight-line basis over each vessel’s remaining 
useful economic life, after considering the estimated salvage value of each vessel, beginning when the vessel is ready 
for its intended use. Management estimates that the useful life of new vessels is 25 years, which is consistent with 
industry practice. The salvage value of a vessel is the product of its lightweight tonnage and estimated scrap value 
per lightweight ton.

2.13 Impairment of Long-lived Assets: The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the 
vessel may be impaired. The vessel’s recoverable amount is estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicate 
the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
If such indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amounts, the vessel is written 
down to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In 
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the vessel. Impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated income statement. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased 
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated income statement. After 
such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less 
any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

As at December 31, 2007, no impairment indications existed.

2.14  Long-Term Debt:  Long-term debt is initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of financing costs
directly attributable to the borrowing.  After initial recognition, long-term debt is subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method.  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any financing costs
and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

2.15 Financing costs: Fees incurred for obtaining new loans or refinancing existing are deferred and amortized over the life of
the related debt, using the effective interest rate method. Any unamortized balance of costs relating to loans repaid or
refinanced is expensed in the period the repayment or refinancing is made.

2.16 Borrowing Costs: The borrowing costs are expensed to the consolidated income statement as incurred.

2.17 Segment Reporting: The Group reports financial information and evaluates its operations by charter revenues and not
by length of ship employment for its customers i.e. spot or time charters. The Group does not use discrete financial
information to evaluate the operating results for each such type of charter. Although revenue can be identified for these
types of charters, management cannot and does not identify expenses, profitability or other financial information for
these charters. As a result, management, including the chief operating decision maker, reviews operating results 
solely by revenue per day and operating results of the fleet and thus the Group has determined that it operates under
one reportable segment. 
Furthermore, when the Group charters a vessel to a charterer, the charterer is free to trade the vessel worldwide and, as a 
result, the disclosure of geographical information is impracticable.

2.18 Provisions and Contingencies: Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic resources will be required
to settle the obligation and, a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed 
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(continued)

at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to
settle the obligation. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognised in
the financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.19 Pension and Retirement Benefit Obligations: The ship-owning companies included in the Group employ the crew on 
board, under short-term contracts (usually up to nine months) and, accordingly, they are not liable for any pension or 
post retirement benefits.

Provision for Employees’ Severance Compensation

The Greek employees, except for crews, of the Group are bound by the Greek Labour law. Accordingly, compensation 
is payable to such employees upon dismissal or retirement. The amount of compensation is based on the number of 
years of service and the amount of remuneration at the date of dismissal or retirement. If the employees remain in the 
employment of the Group until normal retirement age, they are entitled to retirement compensation which is equal to 
40% of the compensation amount that would be payable if they were dismissed at that time. The number of employees 
that will remain with the Group until retirement age is not known. The Group has provided for the employees retirement 
compensation liability, amounting to $30 as at December 31, 2007 calculated by using the Projected Unit Credit Method, 
and disclosed under non-current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.20 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities: Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented
in the consolidated balance sheet only when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intend either to settle such asset and liability on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

2.21 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised where:

 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

 the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but have assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

 the Group has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) have transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from an asset and have neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised 
to the extent of the Group continuing involvement in the asset. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay

(ii) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability and, the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.22 Leases – where the Group is the lessee: Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23 Leases – where a Group entity is the lessor: Leases of vessels where the Group does not transfer substantially all the 
risks and benefits of ownership of the vessel are classified as operating leases. Lease income on operating leases is
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recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned. 

2.24 Insurance: The Group recognizes insurance claim recoveries for insured losses incurred on damage to vessels.  
Insurance claim recoveries are recorded, net of any deductible amounts, at the time the Group’s vessels suffer insured
damages. They include the recoveries from the insurance companies for the claims, provided there is evidence the 
amounts are virtually certain to be received.  

2.25 Share Based Compensation: The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan relevant to non-
executive directors’ compensation. The value of the service received in exchange of the grant of shares is recognized 
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value 
of the share awards at the grant date. The relevant expense is recognized in the consolidated income statement, with 
a corresponding impact in equity.

2.26  Share Capital: Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are recognized in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.27 Dividends: Dividends to shareholders are recognized in the period in which the dividends are declared and accounted 
for as dividends payable until paid. Dividends are paid at the discretion of shareholders.

2.28 Comparatives: Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation
in the current year. An amount of $26 due to Cyberonica S.A. at December 31, 2006, was included in trade accounts 
payable. The amount was reclassified to Due to related parties to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year. In addition, an amount of $72 paid to Cyberonica S.A. for the period to December 31, 2006, as rental expenses and 
an amount of $30 relevant to directors’ remuneration and employer’s contributions were included in administration 
expenses. The amounts were reclassified to administration expenses payable to related parties.

2.29  Standards issued but not yet effective

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Revised

A revised IAS 23 Borrowing costs was issued in March 2007 and becomes effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2009. The standard has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing costs when 
such costs relate to a qualifying asset.  A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use or sale.  The Group will be required to change its accounting policy from 1 
January 2009 to capitalise borrowing costs on qualifying assets prospectively from that date.  In accordance with 
the transitional requirements in the Standard, the Group will adopt this as a prospective change. Accordingly, 
borrowing costs will be capitalised on qualifying assets with a commencement date after 1 January 2009. No 
changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred to this date that have been expensed. The amendment to the 
Standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Revised

A revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements was issued in September 2007 and becomes effective for financial
years beginning on or after January 2009. The standard was revised to require statement of changes in equity to 
include only transactions with shareholders. A new statement of comprehensive income is introduced and dividends 
to equity holders are shown only in the statement of changes of equity or notes to the financial statements. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact this revised standard will have on its financial statements. This revision
to the Standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 8, Operating Segments 

IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting. It was issued in November 2006 and is effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 adopts a management approach to segment reporting. The information 
reported would be that which management uses internally for evaluating the performance of operating segments 
and allocating resources to those segments. This information may be different from that reported in the balance
sheet and income statement and entities will need to provide explanations and reconciliations of the differences. As
the Group does not report any operating segment, this standard will have no impact on it.
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(continued)

3.      Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, 
and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. The fair value of cash and short-term deposits is $9,341 
(2006: $2,069).

At December 31, 2007 the Group had available $5,000 (2006: nil) of undrawn committed borrowing facility in respect 
of which all conditions precedent had been met.  

4.       Transactions with Related Parties

The Group is controlled by Firment Trading Limited (incorporated in Cyprus), which owns 62% of the holding company’s 
shares. The remaining 38% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr George 
Feidakis. The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with related 
parties during the year ended December 31, 2007 and for the period from September 15, 2006 to December 31, 2006.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: The purchases from related parties are made at normal 
market prices. Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. 

On August 20, 2006, Globus Shipmanagement Corp. entered into a rental agreement for 350 square metres of office
space for its operations within a building owned by Cyberonica S.A. (a company related through common control). 
Rental expense is Euro 13 ($19) per month up to August 20, 2008. The rental agreement provides for a yearly increase 
in rent of 2% above the rate of inflation as set by the National Bank of Greece. The Contract runs for 9 years and can

Purchase of services
from related parties

Amounts due to
related parties

Cyberonica S.A.  2007 214 -

2006 72 26

 Eolos Shipmanagement S.A. 2007 204 -

2006 400 51

Interest
Received

Amounts due from 
related parties

Master Aim S.A. 2007 6 -
2006 2 489

Amount due from shareholders: 2007 - -

2006 - 14

Entities under common control with the Group:

Loans to related parties:
Entity under common control with the Group:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Cash on hand 19 -

Short term deposit 7,520 1,000

Cash at bank 1,802 1,069

9,341 2,069
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be terminated by the Group with 6 months notice. During the year ended December 31, 2007 rent expense was $214 
(2006: $72) 

On September 1, 2006, Globus Shipmanagement Corp. entered into an agreement with Eolos Shipmanagement S.A. 
(‘Eolos’) (a company related through common control). The agreement provided for a fee of $100 per month for services 
rendered in connection with the management of dry-bulk vessels. The amount of the service fee was unaffected by the
number of vessels and timing of delivery or sale of any such vessels. During the year ended December 31, 2007, an amount 
of $204 is included in the consolidated income statement for the fee payable to Eolos (2006: $400). The agreement was 
terminated on March 31, 2007 and there was no balance outstanding as of that date.    

Loans to related parties: At December 31, 2006 there was an amount of $489 due from Master Aim S.A. (a company 
related through common control). This amount related to a short-term loan of $487 and respective interest of $2. The 
loan bore interest of 6.5% and it was repaid during the year ended December 31, 2007 with the associated interest for the 
year of $6 (2006: $2).

Amount due from Shareholders: There was $14 due from shareholders as at December 31, 2006, relating to amounts 
due for the issued share capital of Globus Maritime Limited. The amount was paid during the year ended December 
31, 2007.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Group: Compensation to key management personnel of the group 
is analysed as follows:  

5.      Vessels, net 

The amounts in the consolidated balance sheet are analysed as follows: 

 Vessel Cost

Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Book
Value

Balance at September 15, 2006 - - -

Vessel additions 98,627 98,627

Initial costs 250 250

Seller’s credit (1,125) (1,125)

Depreciation for the period - (1,269) (1,269)

Balance at December 31, 2006 97,752 (1,269) 96,483

Vessel additions 186,142 186,142

Initial costs 855 855

Seller’s credit (1,294) (1,294)

Depreciation for the year (10,180) (10,180)

Balance at December 31, 2007 283,455 (11,449) 272,006

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Directors remuneration 792 18

Directors employer’s contributions 43 12

Share based payments 301 -

Other benefits 19 -

1,155 30
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(continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated income statement, Depreciation comprises the following: 

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Group took delivery of four vessels: the Gulf Globe for a purchase price of 
$24.8 million, the Island Globe for a purchase price of $37.9 million, the Tiara Globe for a purchase price of $66.8 million, 
and the newbuilding vessel River Globe for a purchase price of $57 million. The vessels were delivered charter free.

The Group estimated, as of the date of acquisition of the second hand vessels Gulf Globe, Island Globe and Tiara Globe, 
an aggregate amount of $64, $190 and $65 respectively, representing the component of the cost of the purchase price 
of the vessel that relates to the economic benefits derived from the vessel’s previous dry-docking. These amounts are
included in dry-docking cost. 

Upon entering into the purchase agreements for Gulf Globe and Island Globe, it was agreed with the sellers that, from a 
pre-agreed date, a seller’s credit would accrue daily until the date of delivery of the vessel. This credit was in proportion 
to the hire earned by the vessel up to the date of delivery and was received shortly after delivery. The seller’s credit has 
been accounted for as a reduction to vessel cost.

          6.      Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet are analysed as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Lubricants 512 352

Gas cylinders 41 30

Total 553 382

Depreciation on vessel cost 10,180

Depreciation on office furniture and equipment 32
10,212

Dry-docking Cost

Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Book
Value

Balance September 15, 2006 - - -

Dry-Docking additions 873 - 873

Depreciation for the period - (133) (133)

Balance at December 31, 2006 873 (133) 740

Dry-Docking additions 2,007 2,007

Depreciation for the year (1,033) (1,033)

Balance at December 31, 2007 2,880 (1,166) 1,714

Vessel Net Book Value at December 31, 2006 98,625 (1,402) 97,223

Vessel Net Book Value at December 31, 2007 286,335 (12,615) 273,720
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7.       Prepayments and other assets

Prepayments and other assets in the consolidated balance sheet are analysed as follows:

8.      Trade accounts payable

Trade accounts payable in the consolidated balance sheet amounted to $3,093 at December 31, 2007, (2006: $613). 
Trade accounts payable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.

9.       Accrued liabilities and other payables  

 Accrued liabilities and other payables in the consolidated balance sheet are analysed as follows:

 Interest is normally settled quarterly throughout the year

 Other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on monthly terms

December
31, 2007

December
31, 2006

Due from seller of M/V Gulf Globe - 966

Deferred costs 305 -

Insurance claims 402 -

Other prepayments 351 83

Total 1,058 1,049

December
31, 2007

December
31, 2006

Accrued interest 301 294

Accrued wages - 6

Accrued audit fees 95 39

Other accruals 210 114

Other payables 139 51

Total 745 504
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(continued)

10.    Share Capital and Share Premium

The share capital of Globus Maritime Limited at December 31, 2007, consisted of the following:

The Company was incorporated with an authorized share capital of GBP10,000 divided into 10,000 ordinary shares of 
GBP1 each.

At December 31, 2006 the company had issued 7,333 ordinary shares.

On March 21, 2007, the Company issued 2,342 ordinary shares that were exchanged for the minority interest shares 
in Adagio Marine S.A. and Abrosa Shipping Inc. as described in note 12 below. In addition, on March 23, 2007 Globus 
issued another 325 ordinary shares at par value to Firment Trading Limited. 

By a shareholders’ resolution dated May 7, 2007, the Company increased its authorized share capital to GBP10,077 by 
the creation of an additional 77 ordinary shares of GBP1 each. Following this increase, the Company’s authorized share 
capital was GBP10,077 divided into 10,077 ordinary shares of GBP1 each.

By a shareholders’ resolution dated May 14, 2007, the Company converted its authorized share capital from Pounds 
Sterling to US dollars at an exchange rate of GBP1=$2.002 and divided the authorized share capital into ordinary shares 
of $0.001 each. Following this conversion and sub-division, the Company’s authorized share capital was $20,174.15 
divided into 20,174,154 ordinary shares of $0.001 each.

By a shareholders’ resolution also dated May 14, 2007, the Company increased its authorized share capital to $100,000 
by the creation of an additional 79,825,846 ordinary shares of $0.001 each. Following this conversion and sub-division, 
the Company’s authorized share capital was $100,000 divided into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.001 each.

On June 1, 2007, Globus Maritime Limited concluded its initial public offering of 8,423,333 common shares at an offering
price of $5.9391 per share (GBP3). The net proceeds of the offering after expenses were $46,578.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the company issued 38,666 ordinary shares as share based payments (Note 
14). Accordingly at December 31, 2007, the company’s issued share capital amounted to 28,636,153.

Share premium includes the contribution of the Group’s shareholders to the acquisition of the Group’s vessels. Firment 
Trading Limited contributed $1,275 in connection with the purchase of M/V Gulf Globe and $0.3 in connection with the 

USD
Authorised

100,000

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid
Number

of shares GBP USD

At January 1, 2007 7,333 7,333 -

Issued on March 23, 2007 and on May 7, 2007 for cash 402 402 -

Issued on March 21, 2007 in exchange of minority interest (Note 12) 2,342 2,342 -

Total share capital at May 14, 2007 10,077 10,077 -

Conversion and sub-division of share capital on May 14, 2007 20,174,154 - 20,174

Issued on June 1, 2007 for cash on its initial public offering 8,423,333 - 8,423

Issued during the year as part of share based compensation (Note 14) 38,666 - 39

At December 31, 2007 28,636,153 - 28,636

100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of $0.001 each
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advance payment for the purchase of M/V Island Globe. Another party, related through common control, contributed 
$4,000 to the purchase price of M/V Gulf Globe. Additionally, share premium includes the effects of the acquisition of
minority interest described in note 12, the effects of the Company’s initial public offering and the effects of the share
based payments described in note 14.

11.    Earnings per Share (“EPS”)

Basic earnings per share (‘‘EPS’’) are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to Globus Maritime Limited
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares issued, paid and outstanding. No basic EPS are presented for 
the period ended December 31, 2006, since the Company’s shares were not paid as at December 31, 2006, and thus 
not entitled to participate in dividends during the period then ended, according to the Articles of Association of the 
Company.  

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. Since the 
Company’s shares were not entitled to participate in dividends during the period ended December 31, 2006, as discussed 
above, these shares were treated as the equivalent of options in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, however 
their effect was anti-dilutive, therefore the anti-diluted earnings per share has not been disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

By a shareholders’ resolution dated May 14, 2007, the Company converted its authorized share capital from Pounds 
Sterling to US dollars at an exchange rate of GBP1=$2.002 and divided the authorized share capital into ordinary shares 
of $0.001 each (note 10). The comparative figure of weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of dilution
for the period ended December 31, 2006 has been adjusted for the effect of the conversion.

12.   Acquisition of Minority Interest 

Minority interest in the equity of consolidated subsidiaries at December 31, 2006, related to the participation in 
Adagio Marine S.A. by a company related through common control. As at December 31, 2006, the related party 
owned 67% of the share capital of Adagio Marine S.A. and the Group owned the remaining 33%. As Globus Maritime 
Limited had, by virtue of an agreement with the related party, full operational control over Adagio Marine S.A. and 
power to appoint the Board of Directors of Adagio Marine S.A., the latter was consolidated in the Group’s financial
statements with the capital invested by the related party and the net profit attributable to the related party disclosed
as a minority interest.

On January 11, 2007, the same related party mentioned above participated in the increase of the share capital of Abrosa 
Shipping Inc. and obtained a 52% ownership in the subsidiary (before January 11, 2007, 100% of Abrosa Shipping Inc.’s 
issued share capital was owned by Globus).

Globus had by virtue of an agreement with the related party, full operational control over Abrosa Shipping Inc. and 
power to appoint the Board of Directors of this subsidiary, therefore, the latter was consolidated in the Group’s financial
statements, with the capital invested by the related party and the net profit attributable to the related party disclosed as
a minority interest.

December
31, 2007

December
31, 2006

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 11,210 940

Weighted average number of shares for basic EPS 23,785,402 -

Effect of dilution:

Effect of shares issued and unpaid treated as options - 12,870,858

Weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 23,785,402 12,870,858
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(continued)

On March 21, 2007, the minority interest sold its ownership in Adagio Marine S.A. and Abrosa Shipping S.A. to a third 
party, Lipati Shipping Company Limited (“Lipati”). On March 22, 2007, the share certificates of Lipati in the two entities
were cancelled and new share certificates in the name of Globus were issued. As a result, as of March 22, 2007, Globus
was the 100% shareholder of all its subsidiaries.

 On March 21, 2007, Globus issued 2,342 shares, with a nominal value of GBP1 each, to Lipati as consideration for the 
shares held in Adagio Marine S.A. and Abrosa Shipping S.A.. As of that date, the minority interest in these entities was 
$10,113. This transaction was effectively treated as an acquisition by Globus of the minority interest with issuance of
shares in Globus as consideration. The difference between the carrying value of the minority interest at transaction
date and the nominal value of share capital issued as consideration ($4) was accounted for in accordance with the 
Company’s policy for acquisition of minority interest (entity concept method), i.e. reflected as an equity transaction in
share premium.  There was no cash flow impact as a result of the reorganisation.

13.   Long-Term Debt, net

Long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet is analysed as follows:

During September 2006, the five vessel owning subsidiaries entered into a joint and several loan agreement with a bank for
$85,000 to partly finance the purchase of five vessels. As per the loan agreement, the loan was to be drawn down in separate
tranches of $17,000 upon delivery of each vessel. As of December 31, 2007, all five tranches had been drawn down.

(a)     During September 2006, Chantal Maritime Co. drew down $17,000 of the loan amount to partly finance the purchase of the
vessel, Ocean Globe. The loan amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, of $13,155 is repayable in 29 consecutive variable 
quarterly instalments through March 2015, with a balloon payment payable together with the final instalment. The loan
bears interest at the London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin between 0.975% and 1.05% per annum and 
the interest rate at December 31, 2007, including the margin, was 6.08% per annum. 

(b)    During September 2006, Sibelle Marine Inc. drew down $17,000 of the loan amount to partly finance the purchase of the
vessel, Sea Globe. The loan amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, of $13,155 is repayable in 29 consecutive variable 
quarterly instalments through March 2015, with a balloon payment payable together with the final instalment. The loan
bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin 0.975% and 1.05% per annum and the interest rate at December 31, 2007, including the 
margin, was 6.08% per annum. 

Borrower Vessel
Loan

Balance
Unamortised
Debt Discount

Total
Borrowings

(a) Chantal Maritime Co. Ocean Globe 13,155 (49) 13,106

(b) Sibelle Marine Inc. Sea Globe 13,155 (51) 13,104

(c) Supreme Navigation Co. Coral Globe 13,700 (49) 13,651

(d) Adagio Marine S.A. Lake Globe 13,700 (53) 13,647

(e) Abrosa Shipping Inc. Gulf Globe 14,525 (51) 14,474

(f) Globus Maritime Limited - 115,000 (466) 114,534

Total at December 31, 2007 183,235 (719) 182,516

Less: Current Portion 25,630 (153) 25,477

Long-Term Portion 157,605 (566) 157,039

Total at December 31, 2006 66,350 (267) 66,083

Less: Current Portion 12,640 (66) 12,574

Long-Term Portion 53,710 (201) 53,509
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(c)     During November 2006, Supreme Navigation Co. drew down $17,000 of the loan amount to partly finance the purchase of the
vessel, Coral Globe. The loan amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, of $13,700 is repayable in 30 consecutive variable 
quarterly instalments through May 2015, with a balloon payment payable together with the final instalment. The loan bears
interest at LIBOR plus a margin 0.975% and 1.05% per annum and the interest rate at December 31, 2007, including the margin, 
was 6.08% per annum. 

(d)     During December 2006, Adagio Marine S.A. drew down $17,000 of the loan amount to partly finance the purchase of the vessel,
Lake Globe. The loan amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, of $13,700 is repayable in 30 consecutive variable quarterly 
instalments through June 2015, with a balloon payment payable together with the final instalment. The loan bears interest at
LIBOR plus a margin 0.975% and 1.05% per annum and the interest rate at December 31, 2007, including the margin, was 6.08% 
per annum.

(e)     During January 2007, Abrosa Shipping Inc. drew down $17,000 of the loan amount to partly finance the purchase of the vessel,
Gulf Globe. The loan amount outstanding at December 31, 2007, of $14,525 is repayable in 31 consecutive variable quarterly 
instalments through July 2015, with a balloon payment payable together with the final instalment. The loan bears interest at
LIBOR plus a margin 0.975% and 1.05% per annum and the interest rate at December 31, 2007, including the margin, was 6.2% 
per annum.

The loan is secured as follows:

 First preferred mortgage over the five related vessels;

 First priority assignment of all insurances and earnings of mortgaged vessels;

 First priority charge and pledge on the mortgaged vessels’ earnings and retention accounts;

 Corporate guarantee of Globus Maritime Limited;

The loan agreement contains various covenants, including, amongst others, restrictions as to (a) changes in management 
and ownership of the mortgaged vessels (b) the incurrence of additional indebtedness, (c) mortgaging the vessel and 
payment of dividends without the bank’s prior consent, and (d) minimum requirements for the vessel’s market value and 
insured value in relation to the loan’s outstanding balance.

(f)      In November 2007, the Company entered into a secured reducing revolving credit facility for $120,000 with a bank in 
order to: (i) refinance the existing indebtedness on M/V Island Globe (ii) finance part of the purchase price of M/V Tiara
Globe and M/V River Globe and, (iii) to provide general working capital to the Group. The $120,000 facility is in the name 
of Globus Maritime Limited as borrower and guaranteed by the vessel owning subsidiaries of M/V Island Globe, M/V Tiara 
Globe and M/V River Globe collateralized by first preferred mortgages over their vessels.

The $120,000 commitment contained in the reducing revolving credit facility is repayable in sixteen consecutive variable 
semi-annual installments from May 28, 2008 through to November 28, 2015 as follows: four installments in an amount 
of $10,000 each, twelve installments in an amount of $4,500 each and, a final balloon payment of $26,000 payable
together with the final installment. The reducing revolving credit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 0.95%
per annum if the market value of the mortgage vessels is less than 200% of the outstanding loan, and 0.75% per annum 
if the market value of the mortgage vessels is more than 200% of the outstanding loan. The interest rate at December 31, 
2007, including the margin, was 5.6% per annum. At December 31, 2007, the Company had drawn down $115,000 against 
the secured reducing revolving credit facility.

The loan is secured as follows:

 First preferred mortgage over M/V Island Globe, M/V Tiara Globe and M/V River Globe;

 Guarantees from the owning companies of the vessels;

 First preferred assignment of all insurances and earnings of the mortgaged vessels;

 General pledge of earnings account or any other accounts to be held with the lender;

 Negative pledge of shares of the Guarantors.

The loan agreement contains various covenants, including, amongst others, restrictions as to (a) no changes in management 
and ownership of the mortgaged vessel without prior written consent of the lender (b) the incurrence of additional 
indebtedness other than in the normal course of business without the prior written consent of the lender, (c) mortgaging 
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(continued)

the vessel and payment of dividends that exceed 75% of the net income recorded for the preceding financial year without the
bank’s prior consent, and (d) minimum requirements for the vessel’s market value and insured value in relation to the loan’s 
outstanding balance.

The required annual loan principal payments per bank loan to be made subsequent to December 31, 2007, are as follows:

The required annual loan principal payments per bank loan to be made subsequently to December 31, 2006, are as 
follows:

14.    Share Based Payment

In May 2007, the Company agreed to pay two of its non-executive directors GBP12 ($24) each in ordinary shares in the 
Company per annum, less any tax and/or National Insurance contributions payable, quarterly from the date of Admission in 
arrears. The duration of the agreement is agreed to be two years from the date of Admission. The relevant number of shares 
is to be calculated based on the Company’s share price published in the Financial Times on the date of issue. 

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company accrued an expense of $28 in the consolidated income statement 
with a corresponding increase in equity. Of this amount $24 has been credited to share premium and relates to the 3,080 
shares issued through to December 31, 2007, while the balance of $4 has been credited to retained earnings and relates to 
the accrual for services rendered as at December 31, 2007.

By a board of director’s resolution dated December 12, 2007, it was decided to allot 35,586 ordinary shares of Globus Maritime 
Limited to the executive directors of the Company and to various members of the personnel of Globus Shipmanagement 

December 31 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) Total

2008 1,905 1,905 2,180 2,180 2,460 15,000 25,630

2009 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,355 20,000 25,675

2010 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 9,000 14,400

2011 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 9,000 14,400

2012 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 9,000 14,400

2013 and thereafter 6,930 6,930 7,200 7,200 7,470 53,000 88,730

Total 13,155 13,155 13,700 13,700 14,525 115,000 183,235

Bank Loan 

To December 31, (a) (b) (c) (d) Total

2007 3,020 3,020 3,300 3,300 12,640

2008 1,905 1,905 2,180 2,180 8,170

2009 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 4,320

2010 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 4,320

2011 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 4,320

2012 and thereafter 8,010 8,010 8,280 8,280 32,580

Total 16,175 16,175 17,000 17,000 66,350

Bank Loan
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Corp. as extra payment for services rendered. The Group recorded an expense of $352 equal to the fair (market) 
value of the shares at December 12, 2007 (‘the grant date), which amount is included in the consolidated income 
statement with a corresponding increase in equity.  All shares were issued at December 31, 2007.  

15.    Voyage Expenses and Vessels Operating Expenses

Voyage expenses and vessel operating expenses in the consolidated income statement consist of the following:

16.     Administration Expenses

The amount shown in the consolidated income statement is analysed as follows:

Voyage expenses consist of:

For the year ended
December 31, 2007

From 15 September
to December 31, 2006

Commissions 1,945 251

Other voyage expenses 300 14

Total 2,245 265

Vessel operating expenses consist of:

For the year ended
December 31, 2007

From 15 September
to December 31, 2006

Crew wages and related costs 3,684 601

Insurance 800 93

Spares, repairs and maintenance 1,237 99

Stores and lubricants 1,707 300

Other 211 30

Total 7,639 1,123

For the year ended
December 31, 2007

From 15 September
to December 31, 2006

Personnel expenses 1,027 -

Audit fees 126 39

Travelling expenses 28 12

Consulting fees 56 2

Communication 45 4

Stationary 13 2

Other 181 17

1,476 76
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(continued)

17.     Interest Expense and Finance Costs

The amounts in the consolidated income statement are analysed as follows:

18.     Dividends paid 

By a shareholders’ resolution dated May 31, 2007, an extraordinary interim dividend was declared of $2,100 payable 
to its then existing shareholders. The dividend was paid during September 2007.

By a board of directors’ resolution dated August 21, 2007, an interim dividend was declared of GB 1.44 pence per 
share (GBP 412) equivalent to $817 to the shareholders on record on September 7, 2007. The dividend was paid 
during September 2007.  

19.     Contingencies

Various claims, suits and complaints, including those involving government regulations, arise in the ordinary 
course of the shipping business.  In addition, losses may arise from disputes with charterers, environmental claims, 
agents, and insurers and from claims with suppliers relating to the operations of the Group’s vessels.  Currently, 
management is not aware of any such claims or contingent liabilities, which are material for disclosure. 

20.    Commitments

The Group has entered into time charter arrangements on its vessels. These non-cancellable arrangements have 
remaining terms between one to twenty-four months as of December 31, 2007, assuming redelivery at the earliest 
possible date.

Future gross minimum lease revenues receivable upon non-cancellable operating leases as at December 31, 2007, 
are as follows (vessel off-hires and dry-docking days that could occur but are not currently known are not taken
into consideration; in addition early delivery of the vessels by the charterers is not accounted for):

These amounts include consideration for other elements of the arrangement apart from the right to use the 
vessel such as maintenance and crewing and its related costs.

For the year ended 
December 31, 2007

From 15 September to
December 31, 2006

Interest payable on long-term borrowings 5,377 850

Commitment fees payable on long-term borrowings 14 25

Bank charges 23 2

Amortization of debt discount 137 7

Other finance expenses 45 -

Total 5,596 884

December
31, 2007

December
31, 2006

Within one year 54,812 21,600

After one year but not more than five years 26,380 4,930

More than five years - -

Total 81,192 26,530
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At December 31, 2007, the Group was a party to an operating lease agreement as lessee. The operating lease relates to 
the office premises of the Group (expiring in August 2015).

The future minimum lease payments under this agreement as at December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Total rent expense under operating leases for the year ended December 31, 2007, amounted to $214.

21.     Income Tax

Under Article 123A of the Income Tax (Jersey) law 1961, as amended, the Company has obtained Jersey exempt company 
status for the year and is therefore exempt from Jersey income tax on non Jersey source income and bank interest (by 
concession). A GBP600 annual exempt company fee is payable by the Company.

Also, under the laws of the respective jurisdictions of the consolidated subsidiaries of the Group, the Group is not subject 
to tax on international shipping income. Instead, a tax is levied based on the tonnage of the vessels, which is included in 
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of the United States (the ‘‘Code’’), U.S. source income from the international operations 
of ships is generally exempt from U.S. tax if the company operating the ships meets both of the following requirements, (a) the 
company is incorporated in a foreign country that grants an equivalent exception to corporations incorporated in the United 
States and (b) either (i) more than 50% of the value of the company’s stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by individuals 
who are ‘‘residents’’ of the company’s country of incorporation or of another foreign country that grants an ‘‘equivalent 
exemption’’ to corporations incorporated in the United States (50% Ownership Test) or (ii) the company’s stock is ‘‘primarily 
and regularly traded on an established securities market’’ in its country of incorporation, in another country that grants an 
‘‘equivalent exemption’’ to United States corporations, or in the United States (Publicly-Traded Test). Under the regulations, 
company’s stock will be considered to be ‘‘regularly traded’’ on an established securities market if (i) one or more classes of 
stock representing 50% or more of its outstanding shares, by voting power and value, is listed on the market and is traded 
on the market, other than in minimal quantities, on at least 60 days during the taxable year; and (ii) the aggregate number of 
shares of stock traded during the taxable year is at least 10% of the average number of shares of the stock outstanding during 
the taxable year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the regulations provide, in pertinent part, that each class of the company’s 
stock will not be considered to be ‘‘regularly traded’’ on an established securities market for any taxable year in which 50% 
or more of the vote and value of the outstanding shares of such class are owned, actually or constructively under specified
stock attribution rules, on more than half the days during the taxable year by persons who each own 5% or more of the value 
of such class of the company’s outstanding stock (‘‘5 Percent Override Rule’’).

The Group anticipates its income will continue to be exempt in the future, including U.S. federal income tax. However, in 
the future, the Group may not continue to satisfy certain criteria in the U.S. tax laws and as such, may become subject to 
the U.S. federal income tax on future U.S. source shipping income.

22.    Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial liabilities are bank loans, and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to assist
in the financing of Group’s operations and the acquisition of vessel’s. The Group has various financial assets such as trade
receivables and cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
foreign currency risk.    

December
31, 2007

December
 31, 2006

Within one year 241 198

After one year but not more than five years 1,089 792

More than five years 852 726

Total 2,182 1,716
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(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt 
obligations with floating interest rates. The Group does not currently use any interest rate derivatives to hedge its
floating interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk table

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables 
held constant, of the Group’s profit. There is no impact on the Group’s equity.

Foreign currency risk 

The majority of Group’s transactions are denominated in U.S dollars therefore its exposure to foreign currency risk is 
minimal.

Credit risk

The Group operates only with recognised, creditworthy third parties including major charterers, commodity traders 
and government owned entities. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
Group’s exposure to impairment on trade receivable is not significant. The maximum exposure is the carrying value
of trade receivable as indicated in the consolidated balance sheet. With respect to the credit risk arising from other 
financial assets of the Group such as cash and cash equivalents, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counter parties, which are recognised financial institutions. The Group performs annual evaluations of the relative
credit standing of these counter parties. The exposure of these financial instruments is equal to their carrying amount
as indicated in the consolidated balance sheet. 

Concentration of credit risk table:

The following table provides information with respect to charterers who individually, accounted for more than 10% of 
the Group’s revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Increase/Decrease
in basis points

Effect
on profit

2007
US$ Libor +15 (265)

-20 354

2006
US$ Libor +15 (91)

-20 121

·�������������� �
Revenue for the year ended

December 31, 2007
Revenue for the period from 

September 15 to December 31, 2006

Cosco Bulk Carrier Co. Ltd. 16,943 2,332

Atlas Shipping A/S 8,166 576

STX Pan Ocean (U.K) Co. Ltd. 6,777 809

D/S Norden A/S 5,241 -

EDF Man - 1,527

Other 3,833 -

Total 40,960 5,244
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Liquidity Risk

The Group mitigates liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its operations, applying cash collection targets 
appropriately. The vessels are normally chartered under time-charter agreements where, as per the industry practice, 
the charterer pays for the transportation service 15 days in advance, supporting the management of cash generation. 
Vessel acquisitions are carefully controlled, with authorisation limits operating up to board level and cash payback 
periods applied as part of the investment appraisal process. In this way, the Group maintains a good credit rating to 
facilitate fund raising.

In its funding strategy, the Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans. Excess cash used in managing liquidity is only invested in financial instruments
exposed to insignificant risk of changes in market value, being placed on interest bearing deposits with maturities
fixed at no more than 3 months. The Group monitors its risk to shortage of funds by considering the maturity of its
financial liabilities and its projected cash flows from operations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2007, based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended December 31, 2007
On

demand
Less than
3 months

3 to 12 
months

1 to 5
years

More than
5 years

Total

Long-term Debt - 2,265 32,676 96,556 99,788 231,285

Trade payables - 3,093 - - - 3,093

Total - 5,358 32,676 96,556 99,788 234,378

Year ended December 31, 2006
On

demand
Less than 3 

months
3 to 12 
months

1 to 5
 years

More than
5 years

Total

Long-term Debt - 2,108 15,364 33,062 38,739 89,273

Trade payables - 613 - - - 613

Due to related parties - 77 - - - 77

Total - 2,798 15,364 33,062 38,739 89,963
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(continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. 

The Group monitors capital using the ratio of net debt to book capitalisation adjusted for the market value* of the Group’s 
vessels. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans gross of unamortized debt discount, less cash and cash 
equivalents and restricted cash. Book capitalization refers to total equity adjusted for the market value of the Group’s 
vessels plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the ratio described above, below 60%.

*Market value of the vessels was provided by an independent and internationally recognised firm of shipbrokers.

Net debt as calculated above is not consistent with the International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS”) definition of
debt. The following reconciliation is provided:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Interest bearing loans 183,235 66,350

Cash and cash equivalents (9,341) (2,069)

Restricted cash (732) (368)

Net debt 173,162 63,913

Equity 96,677 35,035

Adjustment for the market value of vessels 194,280 2,767

Book capitalization 464,119 101,715

Ratio 37% 63%

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

Debt in accordance with IFRS 182,516 66,083

Add: Unamortized debt discount 719 267

183,235 66,350

Less: Cash and cash equivalent (9,341) (2,069)

Less: Restricted cash (732) (368)

Net debt 173,162 63,913
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23.    Financial Instruments

Fair values

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group
approximate fair values as at December 31, 2007.

24.    Events after the balance sheet date

Dividend proposed

By a board of directors’ resolution dated February 29, 2008, a final dividend was proposed of GB 7.31 pence per share
(GBP 2 million) equivalent to $4.1 million to the shareholders on record as of April 11, 2008. The proposed dividend will 
be paid on May 9, 2008, subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM on May 7, 2008. 



Director Number of shares percent

George Feidakis (through a company he controls) 17,866,336 62.39%

George Karageorgiou (through a company he controls) 672,816 2.35%

Elias Deftereos 9,550 0.03%

Arjun Batra 14,290 0.05%

Amir Eilon 2,290 0.008%

Total 18,565,282 64.83%

Financial Calendar 

Ex-dividend date:    9 April 2008 
Record date:                   11 April 2008 
Annual General Meeting:    7 May 2008  
Payment of 2007 final dividend:    9 May 2008 

Analyst Coverage

Jefferies International:  Chris Combe, ccombe@Jefferies.com
NBGI International Ltd.:  Alex Chan, achan@nbgi.co.uk
Panmure Gordon:  Gert Zonneveld, gert.zonneveld@panmure.com

This information appears and is regularly updated on 
http://www.globusmaritime.gr/major_shareholders.html

www.globusmaritime.gr/directors_dealings.html

Shareholder Number of shares percent

Lipati Shipping Company Limited 1,715,714 5.99%

Kairos Fund Limited 1,350,000 4.72%

Henderson Global Investors Limited 1,122,333 3.92%

This information appears and is regularly updated on 

Directors’ Interests

Listed below are our Directors and their beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company, as on the date of
publication of this report (April 4, 2008)

This information appears and is regularly updated on

Substantial Shareholders

In addition to the information above, the directors are aware that the following investors hold the Company’s 
shares as follows:
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Unity Chambers
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Reporting Accountants
Ernst & Young (Hellas) Certified Auditors - Accountants S.A.
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Bankers
Aegean Baltic Bank S.A. 
28 Diligianni Street
Kifissia, 145 62 Greece

Credit Suisse Ship Finance
St. Alban-Graben 1-3
Basel, 4002 Switzerland 

Legal Ádvisers
Norton Rose LLP
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London SE1 2AQ

Walkers
Walker House, PO Box 72
28-34 Hill Street
St. Helier, Jersey JE4 8PN
 
Registrars
Computershare Investor Services (Channel Islands) Limited
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